1958

W. P. Rogers and Magna Mining Co. v. United Western Minerals Co. : Brief of Defendant and Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Appellant is referred to herein as defendant and respondents as plaintiffs. All italics are ours.

In this action plaintiffs filed an amended complaint and made a part thereof a contract marked Exhibit "A," upon which the entire action is based. The contract, Exhibit "A," is pleaded in full as an appendix to this brief.

It is the contention of plaintiffs that under the terms of said contract the balance of the purchase price of the mining claims listed in the complaint, namely \$125,000.00, which amount is not in dispute, defendant was required to pay at the rate of \$500.00 per month regardless of the presence of ore or mineral in commercial quantities.

It was further alleged that defendant breached the contract because it failed to operate and develop said claims continuously and diligently and made no effort to produce ores and minerals from said claims. The amended complaint prays that plaintiffs be awarded \$500.00 per month, with interest beginning April, 1956 until judgment, and for the return of the claims (R. 8-9).

Defendant moved that the amended complaint be dismissed upon the ground, among other things, that plaintiffs should have pleaded as a condition precedent that ore and minerals could be produced from said mining claims in commercial quantities. The motion was denied (R. 11).

Defendant filed its amended answer and counterclaim to said amended complaint. The counterclaim at the time of the pretrial was withdrawn.

The defendant alleges in its answer to the amended complaint that it was not required to pay the \$125,000.00 remaining due on the purchase of said claims or to mine and operate the mining claims continuously unless ore or minerals could be produced therefrom in commercial quantities and qualities and that the payment of \$500.00 was only to be made in lieu of production in case there was ore or minerals in commercial quantities and qualities and it then failed to mine the same (R. 14). It was stipulated that no payments of \$500.00 per month had been made, nor had there been any payment from the production of ore and there never was any production of ore in commercial quantities from the property (R. 138).

The Court entered its pretrial order holding as follows:

1. That it was not incumbent on plaintiffs to prove the presence or availability of ores in commercial quantities in order to recover \$500.00 per month specified in the contract.

2. That plaintiffs have elected to pursue the remedy of their right to \$500.00 per month in lieu of production and not the return of the mining claims.

3. That the defendant could not be permitted as a defense to offer evidence to show that ore or minerals cannot be produced from the mining claims in commercial quantities, the same being immaterial.

4. Whether the defendant by doing work upon said mining claims regardless of the production of ore or minerals in commercial quantities could avoid the payment of \$500.00 per month (R. 31).

Evidence was offered on behalf of the defendant to show what work had been performed on the claims and the amount of expenditures made therefor (R. 147-164).

A motion was made to strike said evidence. The order to strike was granted upon the ground that it was immaterial to the issues of the case.

Thereafter Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment awarding plaintiffs judgment for \$9500.00, together with interest in the sum of \$475.00, were entered (R. 34-37).

At the trial of said cause plaintiffs admitted that they claimed no ambiguity in the contract (R. 141).

STATEMENT OF POINTS RELIED UPON

POINT 1

THE COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO DISMISS THE AMENDED COMPLAINT OF PLAINTIFFS.

POINT 2.

THE COURT ERRED IN REMOVING AS AN ISSUE IN THE CASE THE QUESTION WHETHER OR NOT MINERALS OR ORES IN COMMERCIAL QUANTITIES COULD BE PRODUCED FROM SAID CLAIMS.

POINT 3.

THE COURT ERRED IN MAKING A FINDING THAT PERFORMANCE OF WORK IN MINING SAID CLAIMS WOULD NOT RELIEVE THE DEFENDANT FROM THE PAYMENT OF \$500.00 PER MONTH.

POINT 4.

THE COURT ERRED IN MAKING FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND JUDGMENT INCONSISTENT WITH THE TERMS OF THE CONTRACT, EXHIBIT "A."

POINT 5.

IN THE EVENT THE COURT DETERMINES THAT DEFENDANT WAS OBLIGATED TO WORK AND MINE THE MINING CLAIMS OR TO PAY \$500.00 MONTHLY REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT ORE OR MINERALS COULD BE PRODUCED THEREFROM IN COMMERCIAL QUANTITIES, THEN THE PLAINTIFFS ARE BOUND BY THE ELECTION MADE IN THEIR AMENDED COMPLAINT TO RETAKE TITLE TO THE MINING CLAIMS AND THEY HAD NO RIGHT TO MAKE ANY CONTRARY ALTERNATIVE OR INCONSISTENT ELECTION OF REMEDY AT THE TRIAL.

ARGUMENT ON POINTS 1, 2, 3 and 4

In discussing the points above named, with the exception of Point No. 5, defendant is of the opinion that

each and every one of them falls within the general question as to what is the correct interpretation of the contract, Exhibit "A." If the contract is interpreted as plaintiffs contend, then any question as to burden of proof is of no importance. If, on the other hand, the contract is interpreted as defendant contends, then each of the points raised would be error in itself and the following propositions would be true:

1. That plaintiffs wholly failed to allege or prove the necessary facts or matters to give them a right of recovery.
2. That defendant was denied the right of proving its defense under defendant's interpretation and construction of the contract.

We are of the opinion that no one would dispute the rule of law that a contract must be read in its entirety in order to obtain its interpretation. *Gates v. Daines*, 3 Utah 2d 95, 279 P. 2d 458.

As the sole question is that of payment, we call the Court's attention to the following language set forth in subparagraph (c) of paragraph 2 of Exhibit "A."

"* * * The balance of the \$125,000.00 purchase price not so paid for in stock *shall be paid for out of 15% of the gross mineral production from said group of claims* *** (italics ours).

The next paragraph that must be considered is paragraph 3. In considering this paragraph and the interpretation of the contract as a whole on the points here involved, we are of the opinion that the vital language is contained in the following:

“* * * Provided, however, that buyer at its option, may pay \$500.00 per month after six months from the date of this agreement in lieu of working and mining said claims so that buyer shall have the obligation of either continuously mining and operating said claims so long as ore or minerals can be produced therefrom in commercial quantities, or if it fails to do so, shall pay sellers the sum of \$500.00 each and every month in lieu of production. The sum of \$500.00 per month so paid shall be credited upon the unpaid balance of the purchase price.”

Although one cannot consider the above as a scholarly statement of the intention or meaning of the parties, we are of the opinion that if the same is analyzed under the well known and established rules of logic and reason which have come down to us from Aristotle, only one conclusion can be reached. The thought or expression as set forth above is what is known as a syllogism. The first portion or premise namely “if ore or minerals can be produced therefrom in commercial quantities” is a hypothetical syllogism. It is stated in the Revised Edition of *The Essentials of Logic* by R. W. Sellers at Page 137 as follows:

“The rule of the hypothetical syllogism — sometimes called the ‘Law of Reason and Consequent’ — is formulated as follows: The truth of the consequent follows from the truth of the antecedent, and the falsehood of the antecedent from the falsehood of the consequent. * * *.”

The disjunctive syllogism “or if it fails to do so shall pay the sellers the sum of \$500.00 per month in lieu

of production” is defined at Page 140 of the text above cited as follows:

“In a disjunctive syllogism, the major premise is disjunctive, while the minor is categorical. Thus, the major premise states possibilities among which the minor makes a selection by affirmation or negation. ***.

“There are two moods, called respectively *modus tollendo ponens* and *modus ponendo tollens*. This means that we can either affirm in the conclusion by denying in the minor premise or deny in the conclusion by affirming in the minor premise. * * *.”

In analyzing the language in the contract the affirmation clause is “in lieu of production.” Therefore, under the rules of logic, if the major premise “so long as ore or minerals can be produced therefrom in commercial quantities” is in the negative, we must deny the minor premise. In other words, if there is no ore or minerals that can be produced in commercial quantities and we are to pay “the sum of \$500.00 each month *in lieu of production*,” it follows that we would have nothing to pay because there would be nothing produced and nothing could come from production. To hold other than as above outlined would be to ignore entirely the statement as we have heretofore outlined.

The only true meaning that can be given the contract is that if minerals or ores in commercial quantities were producible and if for some reason the defendant did not desire to mine the claims continuously, then it was bound to pay to the plaintiffs the sum of \$500.00 in lieu of production. If this is not the true meaning of the

contract, then it should have been drawn to state that regardless of the production of ore or the prescence thereof in commercial quantities, defendant agreed in pay plaintiffs the purchase price at the rate of \$500.00 per month or at a rate of not less than \$500.00 per month.

If paragraph 3, and particularly the second sentence thereof, is analyzed from a grammatical standpoint, one must come to the same conclusion as above stated. In order to assist in the interpretation of this paragraph, we have attached to this brief as an appendix a photostatic copy of a diagram of this paragraph. As shown by the diagram, payment is to be made by buyer monthly under certain circumstances and conditions. The controlling factor is that buyer has the obligation to mine or pay only so long as ore or minerals in commercial quantities can be produced. Payment can be made in lieu of mining, but the entire obligation is modified by the clause "so long as ore or minerals can be produced in commercial quantities." If ore can be produced in commercial quantities, then buyer is only to pay in lieu of production. If, however, ore cannot be produced in commercial quantities, then buyer has no obligation to either mine or pay.

In determining the correct interpretation of the contract relative to the alleged duty of defendant to produce and pay out of production or to make minimum monthly payments of \$500.00 each, plaintiffs would have the Court read and consider only the following part of paragraph 3 of the agreement:

*** * * Provided, however, that buyer at its option, may pay \$500.00 per month after six

months from the date of this agreement in lieu of working and mining said claims * * *.”,

but the parties did not stop at that point or with that language. Instead, they went on, without even a comma to break the thought, and used the following language to explain their true intent:

“* * * so that buyer shall have the obligation of either continuously mining and operating said claims *so long as ore or minerals can be produced therefrom in commercial quantities, or if it fails to do so, shall pay sellers the sum of \$500.00 each and every month in lieu of production.* * * *.”

The parties had a definite purpose in mind in adding the explanatory language last quoted. To accept plaintiffs’ construction of the contract would be to ignore completely the language by which the parties explained their intent and would ignore the situation on which they based the duty to pay, namely, the ability to produce ores in commercial quantities. As stated in 12 *Am. Jur.* page 749, “A court is not at liberty to revise an agreement while professing to construe it.” The lower court’s interpretation violates the rule that the court has no right to re-write the agreement of the parties.

Actually, no minimum amount is stated in the event defendants mine and produce and pay out of production “so long as ore or minerals can be produced therefrom in commercial quantities,” since it is clear that if defendant mines and pays out of production, the sum payable is 15% of the gross production, regardless of what that amounts to, but in any event, the duty to pay, whether

out of production or in lieu of production, is clearly based on the presence of ore in commercial quantities.

It is a well established principle of law that agreements must receive a reasonable interpretation according to the intention of the parties at the time of entering into the contractual relationship. 12 *Am. Jur.*, Contracts, pages 791-792:

“Agreements must receive a reasonable interpretation, according to the intention of the parties at the time of executing them, if that intention can be ascertained from their language. In the transactions of business life, sanity of end and aim is at least a presumption, though a rebuttable one. A reasonable interpretation will be preferred to one which is unreasonable. When the evidence of the agreement furnished by the contract itself is not plain and unmistakable, but is open to more than one interpretation, the reasonableness of one meaning as compared with the other and the probability that men in the circumstances of the parties would enter into one agreement or the other are competent for consideration on the question as to what the agreement was which the written contract establishes.”

It is an unreasonable interpretation to assume that the defendant would pay the balance of the purchase price of \$125,000.00 at the rate of \$500.00 per month and the plaintiffs would agree to be paid out of production unless both parties contemplated the presence of a commercial ore body.

The only reasonable interpretation is the one for which the defendant is contending, namely: that the

duty to pay and the right to receive payments were conditioned on the presence of a commercial ore body.

Furthermore, the Court committed error in sustaining the objection to the evidence submitted by defendant to show the work that had actually been done on the claims and in making its finding that such an issue was immaterial.

POINT 5

Plaintiffs prayed in their amended complaint as follows:

- (a) For the sum of \$500.00 per month, together with interest from February, 1956 until judgment.
- (b) For reconveyance by the defendant to plaintiffs of the mining claims in question.
- (c) For general relief.

By praying for the return of the mining claims, plaintiffs exercised an election of remedies inconsistent with a demand for payment of the purchase price of said claims. Bringing the action based upon this remedy, which is alternative and inconsistent with any other remedy provided for in the contract or by law constituted an irrevocable election, and plaintiffs could not thereafter demand payment of the purchase price. This principle is stated in the case of *Cook v. Covey-Ballard Motor Co.*, 69 Utah 161, 253 P. 196 as follows:

“And this court has held, where there is a duty of election as to a particular remedy, the bringing of an action based upon one remedy constitutes an irrevocable election, except in case of

mistake of fact or other legal excuse. Howard v. Paulson Co., 41 Utah, 490, 127 P. 284.”

CONCLUSION

We respectfully submit as follows:

1. Plaintiffs failed in their proof.
2. The contract provides that there be ore or minerals that could be produced in commercial quantities before the defendant would be required to pay or mine.
3. The plaintiffs irrevocably made their election to accept the return of the mining claims as their remedy.

The judgment of the lower Court should be reversed and the Court directed to enter judgment in favor of the defendant.