Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (pre-1965)

1958

W. P. Rogers and Magna Mining Co. v. United Western Minerals Co. : Brief of Plaintiffs and Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The plaintiffs and respondents will be referred to as "respondents;" the defendant and appellant will be referred to as "appellant."

The appellant's Statement of Facts is substantially accurate to the extent it has gone; however, appellant has understandably omitted any reference in its statement and exhibits to an amendment to the sale contract which is so

controlling that it alone, we submit, justifies the decision of the Lower Court.

We respectfully invite the Court's attention to the Appendix hereto (Exhibit I) where there appears a letter agreement admitted in the pleadings (R. 29) proposed by appellant and accepted by respondents by the terms of which the appellant requested and received a postponement of the commencement of the obligation to pay monthly installments which obligation it now contends is non-existent.¹

While we submit that by the clear language of the original agreement appellant has unqualifiedly undertaken to pay the minimum monthly installments for which judgment was taken in the Lower Court, this amended portion of the agreement gives strong additional support to the judgment, since it is fundamental that in the interpretation of a contract disputed as to its effect a practical construction placed by the parties upon the agreement is the best evidence of their intent *Hardinge Company* vs. *Eimco Corp.*, 1 Utah 2d 320, 266 P. 2d 494. *Universal Sales Corp.* vs. *California Press Manufacturing Company*, 128 P. 2d 665, 20 C. 2d 751.

We propose to show that the first integrated contract is susceptible of no other interpretation than that placed on it by the Lower Court without reference to this document. The amendment is, however, a part of the agreement

¹See next to last paragraph of letter agreement (Exhibit I). In paragraph 3 of the original agreement (R. 4), the appellant undertook to commence the minimum contract payments six months after date of the agreement (August 4, 1955) making the first installment due February 4, 1956. The amendatory letter agreement extends this date to April 4, 1956.

in dispute and within its four corners and is to be considered whether or not the Court determines there is any ambiguity. As appellant declared in its brief we admit and still insist that the contract is not ambiguous.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I.

THE COURT PROPERLY DENIED THE MOTION TO DISMISS.

POINT II.

THE COURT PROPERLY RULED THAT IT WAS IMMATERIAL WHETHER OR NOT MINERALS OR ORES COULD BE PRODUCED FROM THE MINING CLAIMS.

POINT III.

THE COURT MADE PROPER FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS, AND JUDGMENT.

POINT IV.

THE RESPONDENTS MADE A PROPER ELEC-TION OF REMEDIES.

ARGUMENT

ARGUMENT ON POINTS I, II, AND III

POINT I.

THE COURT PROPERLY DENIED THE MOTION TO DISMISS.

POINT II.

THE COURT PROPERLY RULED THAT IT WAS IMMATERIAL WHETHER OR NOT MINERALS OR ORES COULD BE PRODUCED FROM THE MINING CLAIMS.

POINT III.

THE COURT MADE PROPER FINDINGS, CON-CLUSIONS, AND JUDGMENT.

We agree that the contract must be analyzed in its entirety; that the Court cannot rewrite it; and that the contract must receive a reasonable interpretation. We are confident, however, that the parties indulged in none of the highly academic refinements of logic and grammar expressed in appellant's brief.

We will attempt to show that the interpretation of the Lower Court gave effect to and harmonized all of the provisions of the disputed agreement; that the contrary would be true should the appellant now prevail. We propose to divide the argument on these combined points into two parts: 1, the practical construction of the court below, and 2, the impracticality of that appellant seeks.

1. THE PRACTICAL CONSTRUCTION PLACED ON THE AGREEMENT BY THE LOWER COURT:

Read in its entirety and as written by the parties, the Trial Court attached to the sale contract its only reasonable interpretation by finding that the following were its salient provisions:

- A. This was a *sale*—as opposed to a lease—by which the appellant covenanted to buy and the respondents covenanted to sell the mining claims for a fixed and definite amount (R. 3, para. 2).
- B. That respondents did not—as no rational person would do—hazard the risks involved in guaranteeing the presence of a body of ore.
- C. That any reference to payments "out of production" referred only to the *rate* of payment; not the total amount.
- D. Most importantly, that the appellant had an unqualified obligation to produce—as distinguished from prospect or operate—said claims in order to alter its obligation to pay \$500.00 per month.

The appellant in its brief has misstated the ruling of the Trial Court in asserting under Point III of its brief that the Court made a finding that "performance of work in mining said claims" would not relieve appellant of the monthly obligation. The Court did not so order (R. 32). The appellant has done no "mining" but placed in evidence the fact that they had only explored or prospected the claims. They admitted that they had produced no ore (R. 134). Throughout the contract, the language is that appellant is obliged to pay \$500.00 per month in lieu of mining and producing said claims. The verb "mine" means to "produce minerals" and is not synonymous with explore, develop, prospect, or expend money upon, mining claims. The word "mining" contemplates the extracting of valuable minerals. Nephi Company vs. Juab County, 33 Utah 114, 93 P. 53. See also American Mining Law, 4th Edition, Vol. 1, page 27 and note 181.

The parties clearly contemplated this situation:

- 1. Ore may or may not be present.
- 2. If it is present and is diligently and continuously mined by appellant, then respondents would accept, against the total purchase price, 15 per cent of the gross value thereof whatever that should be.
- 3. If there is no ore present, or if ore is present and appellant elects not to mine it, appellant is required to pay \$500.00 a month to apply upon the contract balance.
- 4. The parties expected that there might be ore present. If there were, the seller would have been entitled to a more rapid payment of his obligation.

Under these circumstances, the proviso quoted by the appellant at page 9 of its brief:

"* * * so that buyer shall have the obligation of either continuously mining and operating said claims so long as ore or minerals can be produced therefrom in commercial quantities, or if it fails to do so, shall pay sellers the sum of \$500.00 each and every month in lieu of production. * * *."

assumes perfect reason: when appellant wasn't mining the claims, it would have to pay. If appellant were excused, as it now claims, by absence of ore, why would there have been added the sentence which appellant omitted to include ending the proviso which it quoted:

"The sum of \$500.00 per month so paid shall be credited upon the unpaid balance of the purchase price."

for the reason that it would then be immaterial what balance remained since nothing would be due.

Every contractual provision must be given some meaning (*Gates* vs. *Daines*, 3 Utah 2d 95, 279 P. 2d 458) and this provision can have none if appellant's view is correct.

5. The appellant, however, could mine and produce the claims, and the respondents, in the interest of early development and accelerated payment of the balance, would go along with actual mining activity in lieu of \$500.00 per month, so long as ore could be produced from the claims in commercial quantities. The Seller (respondents) would not tolerate a sham "mining" operation to be continued upon the claims to reduce his monthly payment after it was de-

termined that commercial quantities of ore could not be recovered. In this connection it is important to note that the respondents, when the mine was *producing*, would receive only 15% of the gross mineral production whether that were more or *less* than \$500.00 per month (R. p. 4, para. 3 of the contract and R. p. 104 and page 9 of appellant's brief as to agreed statement by counsel regarding this point). Reading the proviso again:

"The buyer at its option may pay \$500.00 per month after six months from the date of this agreement in lieu of working and mining said claims so that buyer shall have the obligation of either continuously mining and operating said claims so long as ore or minerals can be produced therefrom in commercial quantities, * * *."

Thus giving Buyer the option to determine which it shall do *only* during that period within which commercial production can be realized.

This, we submit is the only reasonable interpretation of the agreement and the only one under which all the provisions of the agreement can be harmonized and given effect.

2. THE IMPRACTICALITY OF THE INTER-PRETATION SOUGHT BY APPELLANT:

The appellant contends that in order to prevail the respondents should have been required to plead and prove the existence of a body of commercial ore. Appellant is saying that the Seller, in order to recover the purchase price of the claims, must prove that he has sold the Buyer an ore

body sufficient in size and value to pay the full purchase price out of 15 per cent of its production. The minute 15% of production failed to satisfy the contract balances the obligation stops. If this view is adopted, what possible value can the provision for a minimum \$500.00 monthly payment have?

The appellant also is contending that the respondents, having conveyed and completely divested themselves of ownership of the claims,² are subject to condition upon recovery of the balance of the consideration which condition is wholly within the power of the appellant to fulfill or not to fulfill. In other words, would any reasonable person convey title to mining claims, or any other property, with a balance remaining which was to be paid at a minimum rate of \$500.00 per month, but confer on Buyer absolute control over the property with the provision that should it not see fit to make the property productive, the unpaid purchase price would be forgiven. This construction not only neutralizes all effect of the minimum provision for payment of \$500.00 per month, it also militates against sound reason.

The construction argued by the appellant would abrogate all of the following provisions of the agreement:

- i. The provision for a fixed, definite, consideration.
- ii. That something be paid each and every month (either \$500.00 or 15% of a bona-fide and producing *mining* operation).

²Respondent conveyed the claims on acceptance of title (R. 5, paras. 7, 8, 9).

- iii. That the Sellers may, at their option, either retake the claims or pursue any other remedy they may have at law (para. 10 of the agreement) in event of buyer's default.
- iv. The provision for any payment further than the down payment, since thereafter the entire contract would, if interpreted as urged by appellant, become illusory, without mutuality of agreement, since nothing else would be required of appellant. In this connection see Ross vs. Producers Mutual Ins. Co., 4 Utah 2d 396, 295 P. 2d 339, holding: "Wherever possible, a contract should be so construed that there are mutually binding promises on each party.
 - v. The provision that the contract is to effect a sale of the properties.
- vi. The provision that the Seller is to receive \$500.00 per month under any circumstances.

We respectfully submit that the contentions of appellant fall squarely within the interdiction of Section 236 (a) of the American Law Institute's Restatement of the Law of Contracts which states:

"An interpretation which gives a reasonable, lawful and effective meaning to all manifestations of intention is preferred to an interpretation which leaves a part of such manifestations unreasonable, unlawful or of no effect."

POINT IV.

THE RESPONDENTS MADE A PROPER ELECTION OF REMEDIES.

We fail to see in this action any issue regarding election of remedies.

At the time of the pre-trial the appellant demanded that the respondents elect which remedy they would pursue (R. 117). Considerable discussion followed and an election was made by plaintiffs (R. 124) to pursue the remedy which resulted in the award by the Court below.

The Court allowed the election of the respondents and entered it into the pre-trial order (R. 31).

We admit that an election was required at the time of pre-trial. The appellant seems to be saying that where inconsistent remedies are asked, the plaintiff cannot recover under either. This argument does not comport with Rule 8 (e) (2) URCP allowing a pleader to state inconsistent claims for relief.

The ruling of the Trial Court in its pre-trial order amounted to an amendment to the pleading by leave of the Court. Rule 16 (2) states:

"In any action, the court may in its discretion direct the attorneys for the parties to appear before it for a conference to consider: * * *

"(2) The necessity or desirability of amendments to the pleadings. * * *"

We are confident the appellant is not serious in its contention that the respondents did not make a suitable election of remedies.

CONCLUSION

We respectfully contend that the Trial Court placed upon the agreement the only reasonable and rational interpretation it is susceptible of receiving; that every provision was given meaning to effect harmony with every other provision, and that the Court properly ordered at conclusion of the pre-trial that respondents were entitled to pursue the remedy on which the Court awarded judgment.